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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

CHAYA LANDAU on behalf of herself and
all other similarly situated consumers

Plaintiff,
-against-
GC SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Introduction

1. Plaintiff, Chaya Landau, brings this action against GC Services Limited Partnership for
violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq.
(“FDCPA”). The FDCPA prohibits debt collectors from engaging in abusive, deceptive
and unfair collection practices while attempting to collect on debts.

Parties

2. Plaintiff is a citizen of the State of New York who resides within this District.

3. Plaintiff is a consumer as that term is defined by Section 1692(a)(3) of the FDCPA, in
that the alleged debt that Defendant sought to collect from Plaintiff a consumer debt.

4. Upon information and belief, Defendant's principal place of business is located in
Houston, Texas.

5. Defendant is regularly engaged, for profit, in the collection of debts allegedly owed by
consumers.

6. Defendant is a “debt collector” as that term is defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. §

1692(a)(6).
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Jurisdiction and Venue

This Court has federal question jurisdiction under 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d) and 28 U.S.C. §
1331.
Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), as the acts and
transactions that give rise to this action occurred, in substantial part, in this district.

Allegations Particular to Chaya Landau
Upon information and belief, on a date better known by Defendant, Defendant began to
attempt to collect an alleged consumer debt from the Plaintiff.
On or about May 18, 2017, Defendant sent the Plaintiff a collection letter.
The May 18, 2017 letter stated in part: “As of the date of this letter, you owe $6,363.69.
Because of interest, late charges, and other charges that may vary from day to day, the
amount due on the day you pay may be greater. Hence, if you pay the amount shown
above, an adjustment may be necessary after we receive your check, in which event we
will inform you.”
15 U.S.C. § 1692g provides that within five days after the initial communication with a
consumer in connection with the collection of any debt, a debt collector shall, unless the
information is contained in the initial communication or the consumer has paid the debt,
send the consumer a written notice containing certain enumerated information.
One such requirement is that the debt collector provide “the amount of the debt.” 15
U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(1).
A debt collector has the obligation not just to convey the amount of the debt, but to
convey such clearly.
15 U.S.C. § 1692e prohibits a debt collector from using any false, deceptive, or

misleading representation or means in connection with the collection of any debt.
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The question of whether a collection letter is deceptive is determined from the
perspective of the “least sophisticated consumer.”

While § 1692e specifically prohibits certain practices, the list is non-exhaustive, and does
not preclude a claim of falsity or deception based on any non-enumerated practice.

A collection letter is deceptive under 15 U.S.C. § 1692e¢ if it can reasonably be read by
the least sophisticated consumer to have two or more meanings, one of which is
inaccurate.

A collection letter is also deceptive under 15 U.S.C. § 1692e if it is reasonably
susceptible to an inaccurate reading by the least sophisticated consumer.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff whether the amount listed is the actual
amount of the debt due.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff whether the amount listed already
includes “accrued interest.”

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff whether the amount listed already
includes “late charges, and other charges.”

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to advise Plaintiff what portion of the amount listed is
principal.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff whether the amount listed will increase.
The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff what “late charges, and other charges”
might apply.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if “late charges, and other charges” are
applied, when such “late charges, and other charges” will be applied.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if “late charges, and other charges” are

applied, what the amount of those “late charges, and other charges” will be.
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The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff of the nature of the “late charges, and
other charges.”

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” what the
amount of the accrued interest will be.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” when such
interest will be applied.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” what the
interest rate is.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” the
amount of money the amount listed will increase per day.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” the
amount of money the amount listed will increase per week.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” the
amount of money the amount listed will increase per month.

The May 18, 2017 letter failed to inform Plaintiff if there is accrued “interest,” the
amount of money the amount listed will increase per any measurable period.

The May 18, 2017 letter fails to indicate the minimum amount Plaintiff owed at the time
of the letter

The May 18, 2017 letter fails to provide information that would allow the least
sophisticated consumer to determine the minimum amount he or she owes at the time of
the letter.

The May 18, 2017 letter fails to provide information that would allow the Plaintiff to
determine what Plaintiff will need to pay to resolve the debt at any given moment in the

future.
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The May 18, 2017 letter, because of the aforementioned failures, would render the least
sophisticated consumer unable to determine the amount of his or her debt.

The least sophisticated consumer could reasonably believe that the debt could be satisfied
by remitting the listed amount “as of the date of this letter,” at any time after receipt of
the letter.

The least sophisticated consumer could reasonably believe that the amount listed was
accurate only on the date of the May 18, 2017 letter.

If interest is continuing to accrue, the least sophisticated consumer would not know the
amount of the debt because the letter fails to indicate the applicable interest rate.

If interest is continuing to accrue, the least sophisticated consumer would not know the
amount of the debt because the letter fails to indicate what the amount of the accrued
interest will be.

If interest is continuing to accrue, the least sophisticated consumer would not know the
amount of the debt because the letter fails to indicate when such interest will be applied.
If interest is continuing to accrue, the least sophisticated consumer would not know the
amount of the debt because the letter fails to indicate the amount of money the amount
listed will increase at any measurable period.

If “late charges, and other charges” are continuing to accrue, the least sophisticated
consumer would not know the amount of the debt because the letter fails to indicate the
nature of the “late charges, and other charges.”!

The Defendant’s failures are purposeful.

L Carlin v. Davidson Fink LLP, 852 F.3d 207 (2d Cir. 2017), Balke v. All. One Receivables Mgmt., No. 16-cv-5624(ADS)(AKT), 2017 U.S.

Dist. LEXIS 94021, at *14 (E.D.N.Y. June 19, 2017) (“[T]he Collection Letter in this case refers with vagueness to "accrued interest or other

charges," without providing any information regarding the rate of interest; the nature of the "other charges"; how any such charges would be
calculated; and what portion of the balance due, if any, reflects already-accrued interest and other charges. By failing to provide even the most
basic level of specificity in this regard, the Court “cannot say whether those amounts are properly part of the amount of the debt,” for purposes of
section 1692g.Carlin, 852 F.3d at 216. Further, as set forth in Carlin, without any clarifying details, the Collection Letter states only that these
unspecified assessments may be added to the balance due, which the Court finds to be insufficient to "accurately inform[ ] the [Plaintiff] that the
amount of the debt stated in the letter will increase over time.")
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In order to induce payments from consumers that would not otherwise be made if the
consumer knew the true amount due, Defendant does not inform the consumer whether
the amount listed will increase.

In order to induce payments from consumers that would not otherwise be made if the
consumer knew the true amount due, Defendant does not inform the consumer what “late
charges, and other charges” might apply.

In order to induce payments from consumers that would not otherwise be made if the
consumer knew the true amount due, Defendant does not inform the consumer when such
“late charges, and other charges” will be applied.

Defendant failed to clearly and unambiguously state the amount of the debt, in violation
of 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(1).

The May 18, 2017 letter would likely make the least sophisticated consumer uncertain as
to the amount of the debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a)(1).

The May 18, 2017 letter would likely make the least sophisticated consumer confused as
to the amount of the debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(1).

Defendant’s conduct constitutes a false, deceptive and misleading means and
representation in connection with the collection of the debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C. §
1692e.

The May 18, 2017 letter can reasonably be read by the least sophisticated consumer to
have two or more meanings concerning the actual balance due, one of which must is
inaccurate, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e.

Defendant's conduct violated 15 U.S.C. 88 1692¢g(a)(1) and 1692e.

On the back of the said May 18, 2017 letter, the Defendant stated the following:

“UNLESS YOU, WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF
GC SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING

-6-
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THIS DEBT, DISPUTE THE VALIDITY OF THE DEBT, OR ANY PORTION
THEREOF, THE DEBT WILL BE ASSUMED TO BE VALID BY GC
SERVICES. IF YOU NOTIFY GC SERVICES IN WRITING WITHIN THE
ABOVE DESCRIBED THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD THAT THE DEBT, OR
ANY PORTION THEREOF IS DISPUTED, GC SERVICES WILL OBTAIN
VERIFICATION OF THE DEBT OR A COPY OF A JUDGEMENT AGAINST
YOU AND A COPY OF SUCH VERIFICATION OR JUDGMENT WILL BE
MAILED TO YOU BY GC SERVICES. UPON YOUR WRITTEN REQUEST
WITHIN THE ABOVE DESCRIBED THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD, GC
SERVICES WILL PROVIDE YOU WITH THE NAME AND ADDRESS OF
THE ORIGINAL CREDITOR, IF DIFFERENT FROM THE CURRENT
CREDITOR.” (emphasis added)

Said letter misrepresented the Plaintiff's right to dispute the debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C.
88 1692e and 1692¢(10).
Section 1692g(a) of the FDCPA provides:

“Within five days after the initial communication with a consumer in
connection with the collection of any debt, a debt collector shall, unless
the following information is contained in the initial communication or
the consumer has paid the debt, send the consumer a written notice
containing —

a statement that unless the consumer, within thirty days after receipt of

the notice, disputes the validity of the debt, or any portion thereof, the

debt will be assumed to be valid by the debt collector - 15 U.S.C. §

16929(a)(3);

The written notice must also contain:

a statement that if the consumer notifies the debt collector in writing

within the thirty-day period that the debt, or any portion thereof, is

disputed, the debt collector will obtain verification of the debt or a copy

of the judgment against the consumer and a copy of such verification or

judgment will be mailed to the consumer by the debt collector - 15

U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(4).”
The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) would lead the least

sophisticated consumer to believe there was a prior initial written communication from

Defendant.
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The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) would confuse the least
sophisticated consumer concerning the time frame to dispute the debt or seek validation
of the debt.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a)(3) is confusing.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) would make the least
sophisticated consumer uncertain as to his or her rights.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) would make the least
sophisticated consumer confused as to his or her rights.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) would make the least
sophisticated consumer confused as to his or her rights.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a)(3) is confused Plaintiff.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
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SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a)(3) made Plaintiff uncertain as
to his or her rights.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) made Plaintiff confused as
to his or her rights.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(3) led Plaintiff to believe
there was a prior initial written communication from Defendant.

The Defendant’s addition of the words “AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC
SERVICES’ INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU CONCERNING THIS
DEBT” to the disclosure required by 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a)(3) led Plaintiff to believe his
time to dispute the debt had already passed.

The Defendant’s Notice implies that the thirty day period for a consumer to dispute a
debt begins at the receipt of Defendant’s “INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE” to the
consumer.?

The Notice does not however imply, that the thirty day period to dispute a debt and/or
obtain verification begins at the receipt of the Defendant’s actual May 30, 2016 letter.
The said Notice is in violation of the FDCPA as it failed to effectively and clearly convey

to the Plaintiff and the unsophisticated consumer, the correct time-frame in which a

2 Guerrero v. GC Servs. Ltd. P'ship, No. CV 15-7449 (DRH) (AKT), 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 42884 (E.D.N.Y. Mar. 23, 2017) (". . . Section

1692g sets forth certain information that a debt collector must convey in writing to a debtor when attempting to collect a debt. . . . However,
although communicating the above language to a debtor is necessary to comply with the statute, it does not follow that the provision of such
language is in all cases sufficient to insulate a debt collector from liability.")

-9-
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dispute need be submitted to the Defendant in order to invoke the protections of the
FDCPA.

The Defendant's language would lead the least sophisticated consumer to assume that his
option to dispute the debt, would only be in writing.

An unsophisticated consumer would assume from the above mentioned language, that he
or she has no option to make an oral dispute.®

Said language can be reasonably read to have two or more different meanings, one of
which is false.*

Defendant’s May 18, 2017 letter is in violation of 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1692e, 1692¢(10) and
1692¢g for sending a collection letter which fails to effectively provide the Validation
Rights Notice required by law, and for engaging in deceptive practices.

Plaintiff suffered injury in fact by being subjected to unfair and abusive practices of the
Defendant.

Plaintiff suffered actual harm by being the target of the Defendant's misleading debt
collection communications.

Defendant violated the Plaintiff's right not to be the target of misleading debt collection
communications.

Defendant violated the Plaintiff's right to a truthful and fair debt collection process.

Defendant used materially false, deceptive, misleading representations and means in its

3 Hooks v. Forman, Holt, Eliades & Ravin, LLC, 717 F.3d 282, 2013 U.S. App. LEXIS 10754, 2013 WL 2321409 (2d Cir. N.Y. 2013)

(Requiring a consumer to dispute a debt in writing violates the FDCPA.)); Zengerle v. Dynia & Assocs., 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 130873 (6™ Cir.
M.1. 2013) (Defendant points out that the letter does not expressly state that the consumer must provide a written statement to dispute the debt,
but only that the consumer must “provide us with a statement.” Viewing the language from the perspective of the least sophisticated consumer,
however, “provide us with a statement” suggests that a writing is necessary and that the consumer may not orally dispute the debt.)

4 Pipiles v. Credit Bureau of Lockport, Inc., 886 F.2d 22, 25 (2d Cir. 1989) (Because the collection notice was reasonably susceptible to an

inaccurate reading, it was deceptive within the meaning of the Act.); Clomon v. Jackson, 988 F.2d 1314, 1319 (2d Cir. 1993) (Collection notices
are deceptive if they are open to more than one reasonable interpretation, at least one of which is inaccurate.); Russell v. Equifax A.R.S., 74 F.3d
30, 34 (2d Cir. N.Y. 1996) (A collection notice is deceptive when it can be reasonably read to have two or more different meanings, one of which

is inaccurate. The fact that the notice's terminology was vague or uncertain will not prevent it from being held deceptive under § 1692¢e(10) of the

Act.)

-10-
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attempted collection of Plaintiff's alleged debt.
Defendant's communications were designed to cause the debtor to suffer a harmful
disadvantage in charting a course of action in response to Defendant's collection efforts.
The FDCPA ensures that consumers are fully and truthfully apprised of the facts and of
their rights, the act enables them to understand, make informed decisions about, and
participate fully and meaningfully in the debt collection process. The purpose of the
FDCPA is to provide information that helps consumers to choose intelligently. The
Defendant's false representations misled the Plaintiff in a manner that deprived her of her
right to enjoy these benefits, these materially misleading statements trigger liability under
section 1692e of the Act.
These deceptive communications additionally violated the FDCPA since they frustrate
the consumer’s ability to intelligently choose his or her response.
Plaintiff seeks to end these violations of the FDCPA. Plaintiff has suffered damages
including but not limited to, fear, stress, mental anguish, emotional stress and acute
embarrassment. Plaintiff and putative class members are entitled to preliminary and
permanent injunctive relief, including, declaratory relief, and damages.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS
This action is brought as a class action. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself
and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure.
The identities of all class members are readily ascertainable from the records of GC
Services Limited Partnership and those business and governmental entities on whose

behalf it attempts to collect debts.

-11-
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Excluded from the Plaintiff's Class is the Defendant and all officers, members, partners,
managers, directors, and employees of GC Services Limited Partnership, and all of their
respective immediate families, and legal counsel for all parties to this action and all
members of their immediate families.
There are questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff's Class, which common
issues predominate over any issues involving only individual class members. The
principal issues are whether Defendant's communications with the Plaintiff, such as the
above stated claims, violate provisions of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.
The Plaintiff's claims are typical of the class members, as all are based upon the same
facts and legal theories.
The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Plaintiff's Class defined
in this complaint. The Plaintiff has retained counsel with experience in handling
consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions, and neither the Plaintiff nor
her attorneys have any interests, which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this
action.
This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action pursuant
to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure because there is a
well-defined community interest in the litigation:

@ Numerosity: The Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges,

that the Plaintiff's Class defined above is so numerous that joinder of all
members would be impractical.

(b) Common Questions Predominate: Common questions of law and fact exist

as to all members of the Plaintiff's Class and those questions predominate

over any questions or issues involving only individual class members. The

-12-



Case 1:17-cv-06143 Document 1 Filed 10/22/17 Page 13 of 16 PagelD #: 13

(©)

(d)

(€)

principal issues are whether the Defendant's communications with the
Plaintiff, such as the above stated claims, violate provisions of the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

Typicality: The Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the class
members. Plaintiff and all members of the Plaintiff's Class defined in this
complaint have claims arising out of the Defendant's common uniform
course of conduct complained of herein.

Adequacy: The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of
the class members insofar as Plaintiff has no interests that are adverse to the
absent class members. The Plaintiff is committed to vigorously litigating
this matter. Plaintiff has also retained counsel experienced in handling
consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions. Neither the
Plaintiff nor her counsel have any interests, which might cause them not to
vigorously pursue the instant class action lawsuit.

Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available means for the
fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy because individual
joinder of all members would be impracticable. Class action treatment
will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to prosecute their
common claims in a single forum efficiently and without unnecessary
duplication of effort and expense that individual actions would engender.
Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(I)(A) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure is appropriate because adjudications with respect to individual
members create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications which could

establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant who, on

-13-
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information and belief, collects debts throughout the United States of
America.

94.  Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is
also appropriate in that a determination that the above stated claims, violate provisions of
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, and is tantamount to declaratory relief and any
monetary relief under the FDCPA would be merely incidental to that determination.

95.  Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is
also appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to members of the
Plaintiff's Class predominate over any questions affecting an individual member, and a
class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of
the controversy.

96. Further, Defendant has acted, or failed to act, on grounds generally applicable to the Rule
(b)(N(A) and (b)(2) Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief with respect
to the Class as a whole.

97. Depending on the outcome of further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff may, at the
time of class certification motion, seek to certify one or more classes only as to particular
issues pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4).

CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act brought by Plaintiff on behalf of
herself and the members of a class, as against the Defendant.

98.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates, and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered one (1) through ninety seven (97) herein with the same force and effect is if the

same were set forth at length herein.

-14-
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This cause of action is brought on behalf of Plaintiff and the members of two classes.
The first class involves all individuals whom Defendant's records reflect resided in the
State of New York and who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same form
letter as the letter sent to the Plaintiff on or about May 18, 2017; and (a) the collection
letter was sent to a consumer seeking payment of a personal debt; and (b) the collection
letter was not returned by the postal service as undelivered; and (c) the Plaintiff asserts
that the letter contained violations of 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e and 1692g(a)(1) for the use of
any false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect any debt, for
misrepresenting the amount of the debt owed by Plaintiff and for failing to accurately
state the amount of the debt in the initial communication.
The second class consists of all persons whom Defendant's records reflect resided in the
State of New York and who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same form as
the letter sent to Plaintiff on or about May 18, 2017; and (a) the collection letter was sent
to a consumer seeking payment of a personal debt; and (b) the collection letter was
returned by the postal service as undelivered; and (c) Plaintiff asserts that the letter
contained violations of 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692e(10) and 1692g for sending a
collection letter which failed to effectively provide the Validation Rights Notice required
by law, and for engaging in deceptive practices.

Violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
The Defendant's actions as set forth above in the within complaint violates the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.
Because the Defendant violated the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Plaintiff and

the members of the class are entitled to damages in accordance with the Fair Debt

-15-
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Collection Practices Act.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, respectfully requests preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, and that this
Court enter judgment in Plaintiff's favor and against the Defendant and award damages as follows:
@ Statutory damages provided under the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692(k);
(b) Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs incurred in bringing this action; and
(© Any other relief that this Court deems appropriate and just under the
circumstances.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
October 22, 2017

/s Maxim Maximov
Maxim Maximov, Esq.
Attorneys for the Plaintiff
Maxim Maximov, LLP
1701 Avenue P
Brooklyn, New York 11229
Office: (718) 395-3459
Facsimile: (718) 408-9570
E-mail: m@maximovlaw.com

Plaintiff requests trial by jury on all issues so triable.

/sl Maxim Maximov
Maxim Maximov, Esq.

-16-
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Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

I, NvA , counsel for , do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is
ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

(o monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,
O the complaint seeks injunctive relief,
O the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

N/A

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section VIII on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a)
provides that “A civil case is “related” to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or
because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the
same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that “ A civil case shall not be deemed “related” to another civil case merely because the civil
case: (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that “Presumptively, and subject to the power
of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still pending before the
court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1.) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County: NO

2.) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? NO

b) Did the events of omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? YES

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or

Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau

or Suffolk County?
(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
Yes |:| No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?
[J Yes (If yes, please explain) No

I certify the accuracy of all information provided above.

ISI MAXIM MAXIMOV, ESQ.

Signature:
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PO BOX 3044
LIVONIA Ml 48151-3044
RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

I

f:, Please call: (800) 926-3136
3 Calls may be monitored or recorded.

\‘/ CORRESPONDENCE AND PAYMENT MAILING ADDRESS:

P6YW6D00200035 - 127911569 100138
CHAYA LANDAU
:1388 SKILLMAN ST N T Y [ T T LT L U )

BROOKLYN NY 11205-2063 PO BOX 46960
SAINT LOUIS MO 63146

| YOU OWE: AMERICAN EXPRESS IEEVEY
|_CLIENT ACCOUNT NUMBER: ENDING 61007 BALANCE DUE: $6,363.69

< Please detachn and return ypper portion of statermnent with payment x
May 18, 2017 File Number: 2104339

American Express Account Number: ENDING 61007
Original Creditor: American Express

Dear Chaya Landau,

We are writing to let you know that your account with American Express, with an overdue balance of $6,363.69, has
been referred to us.

We understand you may not be able to pay the entire balance in one payment. We are here to work with you to find a
mutually agreeable solution. We invite you to contact us so that we can discuss your particular financial circumstances,
as well as opportunities our client may have available for you. Please contact us at (800) 926-3136 to discuss payment
options that may be available to you on your account.

However, if you are able to pay the balance due at this time, please send us your payment using the enclosed envelope.
We look forward to helping you resolve your account. Thank you.
Sincerely,

Eric Bernhagen
Account Representative

IF YOU HAVE CONCERNS REGARDING THE HANDLING OF YOUR ACCOUNT BY GC SERVICES, PLEASE CONTACT E. P.
BERNHAGEN, GENERAL MANAGER, AT 800-926-3136.

This communication is from a debt collector. This is an attempt to collect a debt, and any information
obtained wiil be used for that purpose.

* As of the date of this letter, you owe $6,363.69. Because of interest, late charges, and other charges that may vary
from day to day, the amount gue on the day you paz/ may be greater. Hence, if you pay the amount shown above, an
adjustment may be necessary after we receive your check, in which event we will inform you.

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE AND ADDITIONAL INSERT FOR IMPORTANT CONSUMER INFORMATION

GC Services Limited Partnership - 6330 Guifton, Houston, TX 77081
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IMPORTANT: BE CERTAIN YOUR ACCOUNT IS CORRECT.

HOME PHONE

NEW ADDRESS
EMPLOYER : PHONE:
EMPLOYER ADDRESS

GC Services Limited Partnership

This communication is from a debt collector. This is an attempt to collect a debt, and any information
obtained will be used for that purpose.

CONSUMER INFORMATION:

UNLESS YOU, WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF GC SERVICES' INITIAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO YOU
CONCERNING THIS DEBT, DISPUTE THE VALIDITY OF THE DEBT, OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, THE DEBT WILL BE
ASSUMED TO BE VALID BY GC SERVICES. IF YOU NOTIFY GC SERVICES IN WRITING WITHIN THE ABOVE DESCRIBED
THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD THAT THE DEBT, OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, IS DISPUTED, GC SERVICES WILL OBTAIN
VERIFICATION OF THE DEBT OR A COPY OF A JUDGMENT AGAINST YOU AND A COPY OF SUCH VERIFICATION OR
JUDGMENT WILL BE MAILED TO YOU BY GC SERVICES. UPON YOUR WRITTEN REQUEST WITHIN THE ABOVE
DESCRIBED THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD, GC SERVICES WILL PROVIDE YOU WITH THE NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
ORIGINAL CREDITOR, IF DIFFERENT FROM THE CURRENT CREDITOR.

THE DEMANDS FOR PAYMENT IN THIS LETTER DO NOT REDUCE YOUR RIGHTS TO DISPUTE THIS DEBT, OR ANY
PORTION THEREOF, AND/OR TO REQUEST VERIFICATION WITHIN THE THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD AS SET FORTH
ABOVE.

ESTE ES UN INTENTO PARA COBRAR UNA DEUDA Y CUALQUIER INFORMACION OBTENIDA SERA USADA
CON ESE PROPOSITO.

INFORMACION AL CONSUMIDOR:

A MENOS QUE USTED, DENTRO DE LOS TREINTA (30) DIAS RECIBIR NOTIFICACION ESCRITA INICIAL RELATIVA A
ESTA DEUDA, DISPUTE LA VALIDEZ DE LA DEUDA, O CUALQUIER PARTE DE LA MISMA, LA DEUDA SERA ASUMIDA
COMO VALIDA POR GC SERVICES. SI USTED NOTIFICA A GC SERVICES POR ESCRITO DENTRO DEL ANTES
MENCIONADO PERIODO DE TREINTA (30) DIAS, QUE LA DEUDA, O CUALQUIER PORCION DE LA MISMA, ES
CUESTIONADA, GC SERVICES OBTENDRA VERIFICACION DE LA DEUDA O UNA COPIA DE UN DICTAMEN CONTRA
USTED Y GC SERVICES LE ENVIARA POR CORRERO UNA COPIA DE DICHA VERIFICACION O DICTAMEN. SI USTED LO
SOLICITA POR ESCRITO DENTRO DEL ANTES MENCIONADO PERIODO DE TREINTA (30) DIAS, GC SERVICES LE
COMUNICARA EL NOMBRE Y DIRECCION DEL ACREEDOR ORIGINAL, SI FUERA DISTINTO DEL ACREEDOR ACTUAL.

LAS DEMANDAS DE PAGO DE ESTA CARTA NO REDUCEN SUS DERECHOS DE DISPUTAR ESTA DEUDA, O CUALQUIER

PORCION DE LA MISMA, Y/O A SOLICITAR VERIFICACION DENTRO DEL PERIODO DE TREINTA (30) DIAS ANTES
MENCIONADO.

00012010290000
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

CHAYA LANDAU on behalf of herself and
all other similarly situated consumers

Plaintiff,
-against-
GC SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Defendant.

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

TO: GC SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
6330 GULFTON
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77081

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to file with the Clerk of this Court
and serve upon PLAINTIFF’S ATTORNEY:

MAXIM MAXIMOV, ESQ.
MAXIM MAXIMOV, LLP

1701 AVENUE P

BROOKLYN, NEW YORK 11229

an answer to the complaint which is herewith served upon you, with 21 days after service of this
summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by default will
be taken against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.

CLERK DATE

BY DEPUTY CLERK



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: GC Services Sued Over Alleged FDCPA Violations



https://www.classaction.org/news/gc-services-sued-over-alleged-fdcpa-violations



